
 

 

 

 

 

Prosser Memorial Health 

Board of Commissioners 

 

Board Packet 

January 26, 2023 

 

 

 
  



January 24, 2023 Board of Commissioners Work Session Agenda 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS – WORK SESSION 
TUESDAY, JANUARY 24, 2023  

6:00 PM - WHITEHEAD CONFERENCE ROOM 
AGENDA  

 
COMMISSIONERS:       STAFF: 
Stephen Kenny, Ph.D.       Craig Marks, CEO 
Sharon Dietrich, M.D.       Merry Fuller, CNO/COO 
Glenn Bestebreur       David Rollins, CFO 
Susan Reams                       Shannon Hitchcock, CCO 
Keith Sattler        Kristi Mellema, CQO 
Brandon Bowden       Dr. Brian Sollers, CMO 
Neilan McPartland       Annie Parker, CCOO 
                                                                                                                                  Bryon Dirkes, CHRO 
 

 
       GUESTS:   Adam Trumbour, Senior Project Manager, NV5 
            Paul Kramer, Project Director, NV5 
            Quinton Barrett, People Element 
                                                                                                                        Mac McGrath, Project Manager, Bouten 
                                                                                                                         Kurt Broeckelmann, bcDG  
 

   I.  CALL TO ORDER 
                     A.  Pledge of Allegiance 
 
                II. Public Comment 
 
               III.   EMPLOYEE AND MEDICAL STAFF DEVELOPMENT 

A.  Review 2022 Employee and Medical Staff Engagement Survey Results            Bryon Dirkes/Quinton Barrett 
(Attachment L) & (Attachment P)   

 
IV.   SERVICES 
        A.  Replacement Facility Update                         
              1.   Design                                                                                     bcDG / NV5   
              2.   Construction /Schedule/Budget (Attachment F) (Attachment G)               Bouten/NV5 
                     (Attachment H) 
 

               V.  EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
                     A.   RCW 42.30.110 (g) To evaluate the qualifications of an applicant for public employment or to review the  
                            performance of a public employee.   
                  
              VI.  ADJOURN    



January 26, 2023, Board of Commissioners Meeting Agenda  

  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS  
THURSDAY, JANUARY 26, 2023    

6:00 PM, WHITEHEAD CONFERENCE ROOM 
  AGENDA 

 
COMMISSIONERS:       STAFF: 
Stephen Kenny, Ph.D.       Craig Marks, CEO 
Sharon Dietrich, M.D.       Merry Fuller, CNO/COO 
Glenn Bestebreur       David Rollins, CFO 
Susan Reams        Shannon Hitchcock, CCO 

              Keith Sattler                       Kristi Mellema, CQO 
              Brandon Bowden       Bryon Dirkes, CHRO 
              Neilan McPartland                    Dr. Brian Sollers, CMO    
                                                                                                                                                 Annie Parker, CCOO 
               

               
 

   I.  CALL TO ORDER 
       A.  Pledge of Allegiance 
        
  II.  PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 III.  APPROVE AGENDA 
        Action Requested – Agenda 
 
 IV.  CONSENT AGENDA 
        Action Requested – Consent Agenda 

A. Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes for December 15, 2022       
       B.   Payroll and AP Vouchers # 169603 through # 170529 dated 12-08-22 through 01-17-23 in the amount of 
             $10,754,384.21. 
                   
 V.  MEDICAL STAFF DEVELOPMENT 
       A.    Medical Staff Report and Credentialing                Dr. Santa-Cruz 
               Action Requested – Advancement from Provisional 
 1.  Advancement from Provisional           
                    None. 
 
             2.  New Appointment 

   Action Requested – New Appointment and Requested Clinical Privileges 
Gary Thomas, ARNP – Provisional/Advanced Practice Clinician with requested privileges in Family Medicine 
effective February 1, 2023, through July 31, 2023. 

 
Norman Hauk, PA-C – Provisional/Advance Practice Clinician with requested privileges in Family Medicine 
effective February 1, 2023, through July 31, 2023. 



January 26, 2023, Board of Commissioners Meeting Agenda  

 
            3. Reappointment 

  Action Requested-Reappointment and Requested Clinical Privileges 
                 Jessica Dingwall, MD – Reappointment to Locum Tenens staff with requested privileges in Diagnostic 

Radiology effective February 1, 2023, through January 31, 2025. 
 

Peter Park, ARNP - Reappointment to Advanced Practice Clinician staff with requested privileges in Family 
Medicine effective February 1, 2023, through January 31, 2025. 

 
Fareed Arif, MD – Reappointment to Consulting staff with requested privileges in Nephrology effective 
February 1, 2023, through January 31, 2025. 

 
 
VI.   FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP 
        A.   Review Financial Reports for December 2022 (Attachment T)                                                                  David  
               Action Requested – Financial Reports 
 
        B.   Review 2022 PMH Clinic Financials (Attachment TT)                                                                          David/Annie 
 
        C.    Appoint New PMH Foundation Board Member- Belem Grey 
                Action Requested – PMH Foundation Board Member: Belem Grey                                                   Shannon/Craig 
 
VII. SERVICES 
  

    A.   Capital Request- ERCP Scopes (Attachment TTT)                                                                                           Craig 
               Action Requested-ERCP Scopes at a cost not to exceed $140,000 
 
                                                       
VIII. QUALITY 
           A.  Review 2022 Quality Assurance and Risk Management Program Plans (Attachment AA)                   Kristi 
                 (Attachment BB)    
                 Action Requested –2023 Quality Assurance and Risk Management Program Plans  
 
           B.  Board Officers (Attachment GG) (Attachment HH)                                                       Craig 
                Action Requested – Elect Board Officers for 2023 
 
           C.  Board Committees and Membership (Attachment HH) 
                Action Requested- 2023 Committee Structure and membership                                                                 Craig 
 
           D.  Legislative and Political Updates      Commissioner Bestebreur 
 
           E.  CEO/Operations Report                               Craig  
 
 
    IX.   EXECUTIVE SESSION 
             
            A.   RCW 42.30.110 (g) To evaluate the qualifications of an applicant for public employment or to review the  
                   performance of a public employee.   
 
 
     X.   ADJOURN 



                       2022 -  Patient Care Scorecard
Major Goal Areas & Indicators 2022 Goal Jan Feb March April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec 2022 YTD 2021 2020

Quality

Left Without Being Seen <0.80% 2.02% 1.48% 0.88% 2.25% 3.31% 3.88% 2.89% 5.09% 4.40% 3.02% 3.60% 3.85% 3.17% 1.47% 0.80%

Median Admit Decision Time to ED Departure Time for Admitted Patients <44 min 53             56             51             51             45             51             53             63             53             52             58             68             54             60 70

Median Time from ED Arrival to Departure for Discharged ED Patients <107 min 109           115           114           114           110           134           128           128           143           131           136           132           124           117 128

Severe Preeclamptic Mothers:  Timely Treatment Rate >90.00% 42.86% 57.14% 86.21% 60.00% 84.62% 90.91% 88.89% 100.00% 66.67% 68.75% 66.67% 50.00% 68.75% N/A N/A

All-Cause Unplanned 30 Day Inpatient Readmissions <2.70% 10.61% 2.74% 4.92% 3.77% 5.45% 9.09% 5.63% 6.45% 8.06% 3.85% 5.45% 2.70% 5.63% 5.80% 3.80%

Sepsis - Early Management Bundle >94.40% 100.00% 0.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% N/A 100.00% 96.67% 94.40% 72.73%

Healthcare Associated Infection Rate per 100 Inpatient Days <0.07% 0.00% 0.00% 0.57% 0.00% 0.00% 0.45% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.08% 0% 0.29%

Diabetes Management - Outpatient A1C>9 or missing result  <21.89% 22.40% 24.19% 24.53% 21.32% 22.32% 23.35% 26.83% 22.76% 20.98% 17.80% 17.13% 17.14% 21.67% 21.89% 27.61%

Medication Reconciliation Completed >90.00% 96.30% 94.74% 90.74% 92.00% 88.00% 85.00% 76.67% 81.67% 96.49% 95.00% 95.00% 96.67% 90.57% 46% 47.15%

Turnaround time of 30 minutes or less for STAT testing <30 min 22.0         21.0         21.0         21.0         19.0         19.0         18.0         19.0         19.0         18.0         20.0         20.0         19.8         38 37.5

Median Time to ECG for Patients Presenting to the ED with Chest Pain < 6.3 min 5.0            3.0            5.0            5.0            4.0            4.0            5.0            3.0            4.0            4.0            4.0            3.5            4.1            6.3 7

Surgical Site Infection <0.19% 0.00% 0.59% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.03% 0.19% 0.25%

Bar Code Scanning:  Medication Compliance >93.50% 94.91% 95.77% 95.43% 95.00% 94.54% 93.76% 91.55% 93.34% 92.50% 92.15% 90.03% 90.37% 93.28% 93.50% 98.90%

Bar Code Scanning:  Patient Compliance >94.70% 96.42% 95.81% 96.17% 96.16% 95.95% 94.83% 92.35% 93.55% 92.87% 92.90% 89.10% 89.78% 93.82% 94.70% N/A

*Overall Quality Performance Benchmark (iVantage) >61 61             61             36             36             36             36             36             36             36             36             36             38             38             61 53

*Falls with Injury <2 -           -           -           -           -           1               -           -           -           1               -           -           2               3 2

Green at or above Goal  (4)

Yellow within 10% of Goal  (2)

Red More than 10% below Goal  (0)



                               2022 -  Strategic Plan Scorecard
Major Goal Areas & Indicators 2022 Goal Jan Feb March April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec 2022 YTD 2021 Avg 2020 Avg

Patient Loyalty

IP - "Would Recommend" >93.1% 94.8% 92.4% 91.7% 92.9% 90.5% 96.4% 79.2% 90.8% 90.3% 95.3% 95.7% 98.0% 92.5% 93.1% 87.9%

ED - "Would Recommend" >84.0% 83.9% 81.7% 76.4% 88.0% 88.8% 90.7% 67.7% 85.2% 91.3% 88.6% 89.4% 86.3% 85.8% 84.0% 81.4%

Acute Care - "Would Recommend" >91.8% 90.9% 94.4% 87.5% 94.4% 87.5% 91.7% 79.2% 85.0% 97.2% 95.0% 94.6% 95.8% 90.9% 91.8% 84.1%

OB - "Would Recommend" >93.6% 99.0% 100.0% 97.7% 100.0% 88.9% 100.0% 75.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 96.7% 93.6% 92.3%

Outpatient Surgery - "Would Recommend" >96.6% 100.0% 100.0% 97.2% 97.7% 94.4% 95.3% 98.5% 91.4% 95.2% 97.2% 100.0% 96.1% 96.1% 96.6% 89.8%

Clinic - "Would Recommend" >91.0% 92.8% 97.5% 91.7% 97.6% 91.8% 94.3% 86.8% 90.6% 92.5% 92.6% 93.5% 90.3% 92.6% 91.0% 87.3%

Outpatient - "Would Recommend" >94.1% 98.1% 96.1% 93.5% 96.0% 96.0% 94.8% 94.5% 90.6% 92.1% 96.2% 95.4% 95.4% 94.6% 94.1% 88.1%

Composite Score >92.9% 95.7% 95.2% 94.4% 94.1% 93.8% 93.7% 93.2% 94.0% 92.7% 93.2% 93.3% 93.2% 93.2% 92.9% N/A

Medical Staff Development

Medical Staff Turnover <10% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 4% 0% 1% 0% 0% 0% 2% 7% 12% 0.2%

Prosser Specialty Clinic Visits 1,352         1,386          1,429        1,617        1,428        1,366        1,422        1,272        1,681        1,365        1,504       1,548       1,181       1,433        1,318        954           

Benton City Clinic Visits 868            775             650           822           657           870           730           718           899           881           909          889          757          796           732           837           

Prosser RHC Clinic Visits 1,291         1,063          1,111        1,206        1,106        1,211        1,122        1,152        1,398        1,138        1,213       1,136       1,005       1,155        1,227        1,226        

Grandview Clinic Visits 969            1,055          833           1,021        873           986           960           904           1,065        1,107        1,001       898          821          960           778           589           

Women's Health Center  679            508             600           660           533           611           708           554           648           569           584          589          596          597           602           601           

*# of Active Medical Staff >51 52 53 53 54 55 54 55 54 54 55 55 54 54 51             45             

Employee Development

403(B) Participation Rate >98% 98% 98% 98% 98% 98% 98% 98% 99% 99% 99% 99% 99% 98% 98% 46%

Average Recruitment Time (days) <21 19 26 40 11 15 19 22 17.5 19 15 17 20 22             21             32             

# of Open Positions (Vacancies) <23 32 28 35 31 32 39 39 29 24 21 37 36 37             32             29             

Hours of Overtime - Overtime/Total Hours Worked <4.5% 6.8% 5.3% 4.9% 6.0% 6.3% 6.1% 8.2% 7.1% 7.1% 6.4% 5.7% 7.5% 6.5% 6.1% 5.9%

Agency - Cost/Total Labor <7.7% 6.2% 10.6% 6.9% 6.9% 5.7% 7.9% 7.7% 10.5% 8.9% 10.3% 9.1% 11.4% 8.5% 7.7% 7.6%

Turnover Rate <0.9% 0.6% 1.2% 0.9% 0.3% 0.9% 1.2% 0.6% 0.0% 0.6% 0.0% 1.1% 0.8% 0.7% 0.9% 0.6%

Timely Evaluations >71.8% 95.1% 85.0% 84.2% 93.0% 79.0% 80.0% 81.0% 78.0% 91.0% 90.2% 100.0% 84.2% 86.7% 71.8% 70.2%

Education Hours/FTE >2.15 0.64            1.33          1.39          0.95          0.68          0.75          0.44          1.05          1.68          1.22         2.26         1.06         1.12          1.05          1.22          

New Hire (Tenure) < 1 year <10% 0.6% 0.6% 0% 0.6% 0.3% 0.3% 1.4% 0.3% 0.3% 0.8% 0.8% 0.3% 0.5% 10% 0%

* Lost Workdays due to On-the-Job Injuries <10.25 11 7 7 0 0 6.3 13 15 8 12 1 0 7               19.49       10.25       

Quality

ED Encounters - Left Without Being Seen <0.8% 2.0% 1.5% 0.9% 2.3% 3.0% 3.9% 2.9% 5.1% 4.4% 3.0% 3.6% 3.9% 3.0% 1.4% 0.8%

*Falls with Injury <2 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 3               2               

Healthcare Associated Infection Rate per 100 Inpatient Days <0.1% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.0% 0.3%

All-Cause Unplanned Readmissions within 30 Days <2.7% 10.6% 2.7% 4.9% 3.7% 5.5% 9.1% 5.6% 6.5% 8.1% 3.9% 5.0% 2.7% 5.7% 6.1% 3.8%

Diabetes Management - Outpatient A1C>9 or missing result <21.88% 22.40% 24.19% 24.53% 21.32% 22.32% 23.35% 26.83% 22.76% 20.98% 17.80% 17.13% 17.14% 21.73% 21.88% 27.61%

Services

ED Visits 1,083         1,287          949           1,138        1,246        1,448        1,419        1,384        1,375        1,501        1,492       1,668       1,636       1,379        1,105        805           

Inpatient Admissions 96               123             98             115           102           89             120           121           123           96             94             119          110          109           116           83             

OB Deliveries 50               47               41             61             46             41             50             57             55             42             49             44             57             49             49             41             

Surgeries and Endoscopies 187            162             170           268           274           288           337           284           331           301           294          318          307          278           179           101           

Diagnostic Imaging Procedures 2,851         2,462          2,619        3,134        2,915        2,981        3,091        2,691        3,125        3,317        3,391       3,177       3,074       2,998        2,992        2,280        

Lab Procedures 14,000       14,139       13,806     14,818     13,359     15,075     14,738     13,972     16,271     14,778     16,116     19,201     16,725     15,250     14,327     11,768     

Adjusted Patient Days 1,900         1,627          1,819        2,016        1,838        2,127        2,461        2,502        2,545        2,500        2,180       2,281       2,441       2,195        1,697        1,393        

Therapy Visits 1,651         1,225          1,391        1,542        1,339        1,420        1,701        1,540        1,817        1,448        1,517       1,410       1,237       1,466        1,453        1,314        

Outpatient Special Procedures Visits 325            241             221           332           249           277           306           364           389           418           433          497          478          350           324           247           

Financial Performance

Net Days in Accounts Receivable 50               55               58             55             56             55             55             55             55             55             53 56 56 56             51             63             

*Total Margin 6.90% 5.2% 13.6% 13.3% 11.2% 5.2% 16.8% 7.4% 23.6% 8.4% 11.2% 12.8% 17.0% 12.0% 18.40% 4.50%

Net Operating Revenue/FTE 19,431$    17,959$     18,695$   21,800$   19,651$   20,465$   21,737$   18,317$   23,184$   22,020$   19,920$  19,877$  21,166$  20,399$   20,682$   17,191$   

Labor as % of net Revenue 56.30% 63.18% 52.36% 48.39% 62.85% 60.40% 50.97% 59.42% 45.01% 56.04% 54.56% 50.56% 50.10% 54.49% 57.00% 61.30%

Operating Expense/FTE 18,177$    17,959$     16,155$   17,591$   17,598$   19,469$   17,756$   17,086$   17,873$   19,609$   17,866$  17,461$  17,963$  17,866$   16,940$   15,891$   

*Days Cash on Hand 109            142             150           154           150           148           152           154           161           163           163          167          168          163           155           183           

Commercial % 28.60% 29.90% 30.90% 31.80% 31.70% 31.40% 31.60% 31.60% 31.30% 31.70% 31.60% 31.60% 32.00% 31.60% 29.00% 29.00%

Total Labor Expense/Total Expense 60.20% 60.73% 60.33% 59.41% 62.99% 62.87% 60.43% 62.50% 58.03% 62.86% 60.68% 57.46% 58.91% 60.60% 61.00% 61.30%

Green at or above Goal 

Yellow within 10% of Goal

Red More than 10% below Goal

*Cumulative Total - goal is year end number



 

BOARD WORK SESSION                                                                    December 13, 2022                                              WHITEHEAD CONFERENCE ROOM 

COMMISSIONERS PRESENT 
 

STAFF PRESENT GUESTS   COMMUNITY        
MEMBERS 

• Dr. Steve Kenny                        

• Keith Sattler  

• Glenn Bestebreur 

• Susan Reams 

• Brandon Bowden 

• Sharon Dietrich, M.D. 

• Neilan McPartland 

• Craig Marks, CEO 

• Merry Fuller, CNO/COO 

• David Rollins, CFO 

• Shannon Hitchcock, CCO 

• Kristi Mellema, CCO 

• Bryon Dirkes, CHRO 

• Dr. Brian Sollers, CMO 

• Annie Parker, CCOO 

• Adam Trumbour, Senior Project 
Manager, NV5 

• Paul Kramer, Project Director, 
NV5 

• Brandon Potts, Vice President- 
Bouten Construction 

• Nick Gonzalez, Bouten 
Construction 

• Kurt Broeckelmann, bcDG 
 

None. 

AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION FOLLOW-UP 

 I.   CALL TO ORDER The meeting was called to order by 
Commissioner Kenny at 6:00 p.m. 

None. None. 

II.    Public Comment  None. None. 

III.  SERVICES DISCUSSION ACTION FOLLOW-UP 

        A.  Replacement Facility  
              Update 

    

    1. Design Updates 
         a. DOH/USDA/City of      

Prosser Reviews 
              1. Development 

Agreement 
     b. SVID       
     c. Washington DOT 
     d. Furniture Fair 
           
 

Adam, Kurt, and Craig provided the Board 
with updates regarding regulatory agency 
(DOH, USDA, City of Prosser) reviews; 
ongoing work with SVID to bury the 
existing overflow canal on hospital 
property; Washington DOT and the 
furniture fair. 
 
 

None. None. 



                2.  Construction/ 
                      Schedule/Budget 

a.  Construction   
Update-OAC 
Meeting, 
Groundbreaking 

       
                         b.  Schedule 

(Attachment G) 
                               (Attachment H) 

 
c.  Project Budget  
 

Nick and Adam provided a contractor 
update and reviewed a baseline schedule 
for the project. 
 
 
 

None. None. 

                3.  Financing      
a. USDA  
b. Construction Loan 

                               (Attachment Y) 
 
 
 

David provided an update on all financing 
activities, including the USDA, and the 
construction loan. 

None.       None. 

IV. FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP 

        A. 2023 Capital and Operating 
Budgets (Attachment W) 

 
 

David provided an update on the 2023 
Operating & Capital Budgets. 

None. To be approved at 
the December 
Board Meeting. 

V. ADJOURN 

There being no further business to attend to, Commissioner Kenny adjourned the meeting at 7:13 p.m. 

 



 

 

 

        BOARD MEETING                                                                                  December 15, 2022,                                               WHITEHEAD CONFERENCE ROOM 

  COMMISSIONERS PRESENT STAFF PRESENT                         MEDICAL STAFF                                              GUESTS 

• Steve Kenny Ph.D. 

• Glenn Bestebreur  

• Susan Reams (absent) 

• Keith Sattler 

• Sharon Dietrich, M.D. 
(absent) 

• Neilan McPartland  

• Brandon Bowden  

• Craig Marks, CEO 

• Merry Fuller, CNO/COO  

• David Rollins, CFO 

• Shannon Hitchcock, CCO 

• Kristi Mellema, CCQO 

• Bryon Dirkes, CHRO 

• Annie Parker, CCOO 

• Dr. Brian Sollers, CMO 

• Dr. Wali Martin 
 

 

              AGENDA                                                                                                                                                              DISCUSSION                                    ACTION      FOLLOW-UP 

   I.    Call to Order  The meeting was called to order by Commissioner 
Kenny at 6:00 p.m. 

    

      A. Pledge of Allegiance        

 II.  Public Comment None.  None. None. 

III.  Approve Agenda 
 

None. Commissioner Bestebreur made a Motion to 
approve the November 17, 2022, Agenda.  
The Motion was seconded by Commissioner 
McPartland and passed with 5 in favor, 0 
opposed.                 

 

IV.  APPROVE CONSENT 
       AGENDA  
      A. Board of Commissioners     
           Meeting Minutes for 
           November 17, 2022. 
       
 

None. Commissioner Sattler made a Motion to 
approve the Consent Agenda. The Motion 
was seconded by Commissioner Bestebreur          
and passed with 5 in favor, 0 opposed.  

None. 



 

 

 
      B. Payroll & AP Vouchers  

       #168941 through 
      #169602 dated 11.05.22 

through 12.07.22 in the       
amount of 
$6,931,598.59. Board 
Policies: Medical Staff 
Recruitment; Exclusive 
Designated Medical 
Specialty Services; 
Affiliation; and Issue 
Resolution Procedure-
Exempt Staff. 

 

V.  MEDICAL STAFF DEVELOPMENT                                 DISCUSSION                                                                     ACTION                                       FOLLOW-UP 

     A.    Medical Staff Report     
and Credentialing 

 
 
 

  None. 

              1. Reappointment Dr. Martin presented the following providers for 
Reappointment:   
 
Ryan Steed, CRNA - Reappointment to Advanced 
Practice Clinician staff with requested privileges in 
Anesthesia January 1, 2023, through December 31, 
2025. 
 

              Maria Recio Restrepo, MD – Reappointment to 
Telemedicine staff with requested privileges in 
Neurology effective January 1, 2023, through 
December 31, 2025. 
 
         
 
 

A Motion to approve the reappointment and 
requested Clinical Privileges that were 
reviewed and recommended by the 
Department Chair, the Credentialing 
Committee and Medical Executive 
Committee for the following provider was 
made by Commissioner McPartland and 
seconded by Commissioner Sattler.  The 
Motion passed with 5 in favor, 0 opposed. 
 

• Ryan Steed, CRNA 

• Maria Recio Restrepo, MD 
 

None. 



 

 

      B. 2023 Medical Staff Model 
& Provider 
Recruitment/Succession 
Plan (Attachment P) 

Craig presented the 2023 Medical Staff Model & 
Provider Recruitment/Succession Plan. 

A Motion to approve the 2023 Medical Staff 
Model & Provider Recruitment/Succession 
Plan was made by Commissioner 
McPartland and seconded by Commissioner 
Bestebreur. The Motion passed with 5 in 
favor, 0 opposed. 
 

None. 

VI.  FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP                        DISCUSSION                                                                              ACTION                                                       FOLLOW-UP 

      A.  Review Financial  
            Reports for November 
            2022  

(Attachment V) 
 

David Rollins presented the November 2022 
Financial Reports.  
 

A Motion to accept the Financial Reports for 
November 2022, was made by 
Commissioner Sattler, and seconded by 
Commissioner McPartland. The Motion 
passed with 5 in favor, 0 opposed. 
 

None. 

    B.  Review 2023 Operating   
and Capital Budgets 
(Attachment W) 

 
 
 

David presented the 2023 Operating and Capital 
Budgets. 

A Motion to approve the 2023 Operating 
and Capital Budgets was made by 
Commissioner McPartland and seconded by 
Commissioner Bestebreur. The Motion 
passed with 5 in favor, 0 opposed. 

None. 

VII.  SERVICES                                                                      DISCUSSION                                                                        ACTION                                         FOLLOW-UP 

A.       Review PMH Mission, 
Vision, Values and 
Standards of Behavior 

           (Attachment K) 
 

Craig presented the PMH Mission, Vision, Values 
and Standards of Behavior. 

A Motion to approve the PMH Mission, 
Vision, Values and Standards of Behavior 
was made by Commissioner Bestebreur and 
seconded by Commissioner McPartland. The 
Motion passed with 5 in favor, 0 opposed. 
 

None. 

B.      Review 2023 PMH 
Strategic Plan 
(Attachment J)   

 
 

Craig presented the 2023 PMH Strategic Plan. A Motion to approve the 2023 PMH 
Strategic Plan was made by Commissioner 
Bestebreur and seconded by Commissioner 
McPartland. The Motion passed with 5 in 
favor, 0 opposed. 
 

None. 

C.     Review 2023 PMH 
Marketing Plan 
(Attachment L) 

 

Shannon presented the 2023 PMH Marketing Plan A Motion to approve the 2023 PMH 
Marketing Plan was made by Commissioner 
McPartland and seconded by Commissioner 

None. 



 

 

 

Sattler. The Motion passed with 5 in favor, 0 
opposed. 
 
 

D.     Review 2023 IT Plan 
         (Attachment M) 

Craig presented the 2023 PMH IT Plan. A Motion to approve the 2023 PMH IT Plan 
was made by Commissioner Sattler and 
seconded by Commissioner Bestebreur. The 
Motion passed with 5 in favor, 0 opposed. 
 
 

None. 

VIII. QUALITY 

A. Review 2022 Environment of 
Care (EOC) Report and 2023 
EOC Plan (Attachment X) 

Kristi presented the 2022 Environment of Care 
(EOC) Report and 2023 EOC Plan. 

A Motion to approve the 2023 EOC Plan was 
made by Commissioner Bestebreur and 
seconded by Commissioner McPartland. The 
Motion passed with 5 in favor, 0 opposed. 
 
 

None. 

B. Legislative and Political        
Updates 

Glenn Bestebreur gave a brief Legislative and 
Political Update. 

None. None. 

C.    CEO/Operations Report Craig provided a brief Operations Report based 
upon his written report included in the December 
Board Packet. 

None. None. 

IX.  ADJOURN  

There being no further business to attend to, Commissioner Kenny adjourned the meeting at 6:44 p.m. 



Page 1 of 4 
 

 

JOINT CONFERENCE COMMITTEE                                                   JANUARY 18, 2023                                              VINEYARD CONFERENCE ROOM 

COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT NON-MEMBERS PRESENT 

• Commissioner S. Reams 

• Commissioner S. Dietrich 

• Commissioner S. Kenny 

• C. Marks, CEO 

• Dr. D. Weaver 

• Dr. B. Sollers 
 

• K. Mellema, CQO/CCO 

• M. Fuller, CNO/COO 

• Dr. S. Hashmi 
 
 

     AGENDA ITEM                                                                                DISCUSSION                                            RECOMMENDATION            FOLLOW-UP 

CALL TO ORDER  Meeting was called to order by Commissioner Reams at 0702 am. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES Minutes for October 2022 and December 2022 were reviewed and 
approved by the Committee. 

For informational 
purposes only. 

Standing 
agenda item. 

QUALITY 

2023 Risk Management 
Plan 

K. Mellema reported that the Risk Management Plan had no 
content changes for 2023 and that it will go before the Board next 
week for review and approval. 

For informational 
purposes only. 

No necessary 
follow up. 

2023 Quality Assurance 
Plan 

K. Mellema reported that the Quality Assurance Plan had no 
content changes for 2023 except for changing dates and adding an 
updated organizational chart.  This Plan will go before the Board 
next week for review and approval. 

For informational 
purposes only. 

No necessary 
follow up. 

RHC Regulatory Survey K. Mellema reported that the Grandview Clinic had their RHC 
survey on 12/12/22.  There were six findings on the Statement of 
Deficiencies (SOD): 

1. 1 of 10 charts was missing evidence of follow up for 
diagnostic orders. 

For informational 
purposes only. 

No necessary 
follow up. 



Page 2 of 4 
 

2. Emergency Box contents did not match the policy. 
3. There was no evidence of a patient care policy noting which 

medical reference resources the Medical Director and the 
Non-Physician Providers have agreed on. 

4. No evidence of an Emergency Preparedness Policy that 
includes the use of volunteers or other staffing strategies. 

5. No evidence of primary or alternate means of 
communication for Federal, State, tribal, regional, and local 
emergency preparedness staff. 

6. 1 of 10 licensed or certified staff members participating in 
patient care did not have evidence of current BLS, at a 
minimum. 

A Plan of Correction was submitted on 12/30/22 and was accepted 
on 1/4/2023. 

DOH State Survey K. Mellema reported that PMH had their DOH State survey last 
week.  There were two nurse surveyors, an environment of care 
surveyor and a Fire Marshall.  All patient care areas were surveyed 
including the Specialty clinic and the Physical Therapy clinic.  
Overall, the survey went well, and we can expect to receive our 
Statement of Deficiencies (SOD) in 10 business days.  Once 
received, we have 10 calendar days to return a Plan of Correction to 
the DOH for the deficiencies. 

For informational 
purposes only. 

No necessary 
follow up. 

2023 Strategic Plan/2023 
Patient Care Scorecards 

K. Mellema reported that the 2023 Strategic Plan scorecard had not 
changed from 2022 except for the 2023 goals are based on how 
each metric ended the year for 2022.  The 2023 Patient Care 
Scorecard has no new metrics, but three metrics were removed, 
Medication Reconciliation, ECG time for patient presenting to the 
ED with chest pain, and STAT labs.  The quality metric will be 
calculated differently in 2023.  This data point will be the average of 
the Quality and Outcomes data from the INDEX report that we 
receive three times a year from the Chartis Group.  Both scorecards 
will go before the Board next week for review and approval. 

For informational 
purposes only. 

No necessary 
follow up. 

PATIENT LOYALTY 

Patient Satisfaction Data M. Fuller reported that we only had two departments that did not 
achieve their 2022 goal which were acute care 90.87% vs 91.8% and 
outpatient surgery 96.11% vs 96.6%.  The ED exceeded their goal 

For informational 
purposes only. 

Standing 
agenda item. 



Page 3 of 4 
 

85.83% vs 84% despite a challenging patient population and their 
perception of care. 

Patient Safety Dashboard M. Fuller stated that this dashboard will be presented quarterly to 
the Joint Conference Committee.  The report will include analysis, 
recommendations, and actions.  This dashboard also reflects a lot of 
good work being done by Medical Staff Committees within the 
analysis section.  Restraint utilization remains low and limited for 
brief periods when utilized.  There were seven patients in 2022 that 
were put in restraints in the ED and three patients in acute care. 

  

SERVICES 

Replacement Facility C. Marks reported that Bouten is planning to start again on 
Monday, January 23rd, if weather permits. Otherwise, they will 
begin February 1st.   SVID is supposed to begin burying the canal by 
the end of January.  This should take four weeks.  Bouten will start 
digging to bury utility lines which will not be impeded by the wet 
ground.  There is a year and a half lead time on ordering emergency 
generators, so we are ordering them now. 

For informational 
purposes only. 

No follow up 
necessary. 

MEDICAL STAFF DEVELOPMENT 

Medical Staff 
Recruitment 

C. Marks reported that we have had really good success.  Dr. 
McDonnell has started and went through New Employee 
Orientation yesterday.  He will be doing ERCPs in the future.  Dr. 
Rivero will be replacing Pam Morris as the Occupational Health 
provider.  He will also be an assistant CMO to help with provider 
engagement.  Dr. Dingwall will start in March.  She worked here a 
couple of years ago and has decided to come back.  Dr. Higgs, 
orthopedic, will start in May.  Dr. Mackey, ED, will begin in July.  We 
continue to recruit internal medicine, family practice, pediatrics 
which is a priority and emergency medicine.   

For informational 
purposes only. 

No follow up 
necessary. 
 
 

Emergency Department 
Medical Director 

M. Fuller reported that with Dr. Wenger leaving, it will leave us 
without an ED medical director.  We ended up with two 
phenomenal candidates for the position, Dr. Rode and a candidate 
from Kadlec who is ED board certified.   

For informational 
purposes only. 

No necessary 
follow up. 

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT 

Employee Engagement  C. Marks reported that we had a good holiday season.  We will have 
a busy 2023 starting with January 19th which is National Popcorn 
Day so we will be out delivering popcorn to staff.  Superbowl and 
Valentine’s Day is coming up at well. 

For informational 
purposes only. 

No follow up 
necessary. 
 
 



Page 4 of 4 
 

Employee Recognition 
Luncheon 

C. Marks reported that we will be having our annual Recognition 
Luncheon at Desert Wind today where 49 people will be recognized 
totaling 510 years of service.  Mary Castillo has been here for 35 
years. 
 
 

For informational 
purposes only. 

No follow up 
necessary. 
 

FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP 

Financial Performance – 
December 2022 

C. Marks reported that PMH has its biggest month ever at $24.5 
million in December with a bottom line of $1.5 million and a cash 
flow of almost $5 million.  Cash and Temporary Investments were 
$6.1 million.  Board Designated Assets were $31 million.  Year-to-
date 2022 Medicare was at 31.2%, Medicaid 30.6% and Commercial 
32% which is our highest payor.   

For informational 
purposes only. 

Standing 
agenda item. 

Semi-Annual Financial 
Performance Report for 
PMH Clinics 

No report available. For informational 
purposes only. 

No necessary 
follow up. 

Audits C. Marks reported that we have two audits going on.  A financial 
audit being done by DZA which will be coming back to the Board in 
March.  There is also a state audit going on, but they are stating 
that we may not pay for spouses or significant others to go to the 
holiday party. They claim it’s gifting public money.  DZA is helping 
us with this issue, and we may possibly end up having the 
Foundation pay for spouses and significant others to attend the 
holiday party in the future. 

For informational 
purposes only. 

No necessary 
follow up. 

ADJOURNMENT & NEXT SCHEDULED MEETING 

Meeting adjourned at 0852 

Next scheduled meeting February 15, 2023 

 

K. Mellema 1/18/2023 



January 23, 2023 Finance Committee  

 

 

 

 

 

 

FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 
Monday – January 23, 2023,  

7:00 a.m. – Vineyard Conference Room 
AGENDA 

 MEMBERS:          STAFF: 
 Keith Sattler         Craig Marks 
 Neilan McPartland        David Rollins  
 Brandon Bowden        Stephanie Titus 
                   
 CALL TO ORDER 
 
         I.   APPROVE MINUTES 

Action Requested – December 12, 2022, Minutes 

 

       II.    FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP 
              A.  Review Financials –December 2022 (Attachment T)                                                                      David 
                    Action Requested – December 2022 Financial Statements 
          
              B.  Review Accounts Receivable and Cash Goal                                         Stephanie 
 
   
             C.  Voucher Lists                                                                                                                                                 
                   Action Requested – Voucher List - Payroll and AP Vouchers # 169603 through #170529                         David 
                   Dated 12-08-22 through 01-17-23 in the amount of $10,754,384.21.  
 

       D. Capital Request- ERCP Scopes (Attachment TTT)                                                                                              David 
                    Action Requested-ERCP Scopes at a cost not to exceed $140,000. 
 
        
 
 
      
        III.  ADJOURN  

  

 

 



 

 

 

            FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING  December 12, 2022                                    VINEYARD CONFERENCE ROOM 

                    
GUESTS 

• Keith Sattler 

• Neilan McPartland 

• Brandon Bowden 
 

• Craig Marks, CEO 

• David Rollins, CFO 

• Stephanie Titus, Director of Finance Operations 

  

                     AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION FOLLOW-UP 

  I.  CALL TO ORDER Keith Sattler called the meeting to order at 7:07 a.m.   

II.   APPROVE MINUTES  
 

A motion to approve the 
Finance Committee Meeting 
Minutes for November 14, 
2022, as presented was made 
by Neilan McPartland.  The 
motion was seconded by 
Keith Sattler and approved.   

None. 

III.  FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP  
A. Review Financials –  

November 2022 
             (Attachment V) 
              

Net Income of $1,060,228 in November and Gross 
Charges were $23,463,671 which was 30% higher than 
budget for the month and 41% greater than the prior 
year.  Net Operating Revenue came in at $8,259,069 
(13% over budget).   
 

A motion to recommend 
acceptance of the November 
2022 Financial Statements as 
presented to the PMH Board 
of Commissioners was made 
by Neilan McPartland. The 

None. 



 

 

Expenses were $7,255,103 in November and 6% over 
budget.  Surgeries were 318 vs 185 budget and ER 
visits were 1,668 vs 1,068 budget. 
Cash Flow was ($56,695) for the month and $3,298,621 
YTD.  AR were at a net 53 days overall. 

motion was seconded by 
Keith Sattler and approved.   

      B.  Review Accounts Receivable  
            and Cash Goal  
 

AR was at 56 net days overall as Collections were 
$7,424,372 and lower than goal at $8,519,353 but 
greater than prior year total of $6,329,580.  POS 
collections were $21,093 exceeding a budget of 
$15,000 but lower than prior year $26,499.  POS 
collections YTD are $396,993 versus $165,000 budget 
and $199,088 prior year. 

None. None. 

    C.  Voucher Lists  
           Payroll and AP Vouchers 
           #168941 through #169602 
           Dated 11.05.22 through   
           12.07.22 in the amount of  
         $6,931,598.59. 

 
 
 
 

A motion to recommend 
approval of the Voucher Lists            
#168941 through #169602 
Dated 11.05.22 through   
12.07.22 in the amount of 
$6,931,598.59 was made by 
Neilan McPartland, seconded 
by Keith Sattler, and 
approved.    

None. 

D.   Review 2023 Operating and 
Capital Budgets 
(Attachment W)    

2023 Budget was presented showing $285,610,741 
gross revenue, $101,525,408 net revenue, $94,793,837 
operating expenses and $6,209,240 net income. Draft 
Capital Budget was presented showing $765,587 in 
2023 approved capital purchases and $308,982 of 
carryover approved capital purchases from 2022 that 
have not been completed but expected in 2023. 

None. None. 

E.    New Hospital Financing Update 
(Attachment Y) 

 None. None. 

IV.  ADJOURN       

Having declared no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 7:59 am. 

 



MEMORANDUM 

 

TO:  BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

  PROSSER MEMORIAL HEALTH 

FROM:   CRAIG J. MARKS, CEO 

DATE:   January 2023 

RE:  CEO REPORT 

______________________________________________________________________________  

SERVICES 

1.  2022 Strategic Plan Annual Report 

     2022 was a very important year for Prosser Memorial Health as we celebrated our 75th 

Anniversary, experienced record volumes throughout the organization and broke ground on our 

replacement facility. What a year! I’ve said this during the pandemic, but this year it is especially true, 

our success says a lot about our organization and its incredible future. The success of this past year is 

reflected in our Pillars of Excellence (Attachment A) where we exceeded our target in four of our six 

Pillar Goals. We are disappointed that two of our Pillars (Medical Staff Development and Quality) 

were below expectations, but this inspires us to do better in 2023. It also demonstrates that despite 

experiencing a tremendous year, it is very difficult to exceed every Pillar Goal in a year. We are 

already working on plans to address these opportunities for improvement and will always work to 

continuously improve as we pursue our Mission, Vision and Values. I would like to thank the entire 

PMH Team for achieving these challenging goals and look forward to working with each of them as 

we pursue our 2023 goals. 

     In addition to pursuing our Pillar Goals in 2022, we were also striving to achieve the objectives in 

our 2022 Strategic Plan. As you read the 2022 Strategic Plan Annual Report (Attachment B) you will 

see that we made significant progress on most of our objectives. The most significant and impactful 

long-term was, obtaining financing for our replacement facility and beginning construction. While it 

will take two years to complete the construction, this project will impact our community and 

surrounding area for years to come. We also continue to be successful in recruiting new providers to 

PMH, expanding our services (e.g., GI) to meet the growing demand in the communities we serve. 

This strategy is certainly working as we provided record levels of services throughout PMH in 2022, 

far exceeding our Services Pillar Goal. While we were providing this care, it is important to note that 

we provided excellent care for our patients and support for our staff as we saw both patient and 

employee satisfaction scores increase in 2022. As a result of all these positive metrics, we 

experienced one of our best financial years in our 75-year history. These accomplishments could not 

have happened without the support of the entire PMH Team. Thank you! We still have a lot of work 

to do in 2023, but I am confident that the PMH Team will continue to soar to great heights as stated 

in our Values! 

 



 2. Replacement Facility Update 

           Now that construction has begun on our replacement facility, we will begin to transition our 

monthly reports to focus on construction and budget, with limited reporting on Design and Financing. 

This change will occur completely in February. This month I will still give a Design update, but there is 

nothing to report in financing for the project. The monthly reports attached to my report will also be 

changing. We will continue to have a monthly Owner’s Representative Report (Attachment C) and 

minutes from our Project Team Meetings (Attachment D). In addition, we will now have monthly 

minutes from our Owners/Architects/Contractor (OAC) Meetings (Attachment E); a Construction 

Update Report from Bouten Construction (Attachment F); a Construction Schedule from Bouten 

(Attachment G); and a Construction/Project Budget from NV5 (Attachment H). This is the last month 

that we will include a Four-Month Project Look-Ahead Schedule (Attachment I), as it is no longer 

needed. 

 

A. Design 

     We continue to work with several regulatory agencies (DOH, WSDOT, City of Prosser) as they 

relate to our project but have found they are not very timely in their responses to us. We continue 

to attempt to address the questions raised by the DOH regarding our design, but we have not heard 

from them in over a month despite frequent attempts. We hope to have an update for the Board at 

the January Board Work Session. We are also waiting for WSDOT to approve our Intersection 

Control Evaluation (ICE) study for the intersection of North Gap Road and the I82 westbound on and 

off- ramps. We are hoping to finalize this as soon as possible and will have an update at the January 

Board Work Session. We are also waiting to hear back from the City of Prosser regarding our 

submittal of a Development Agreement to defer North Gap Roads until further development in the 

area occurs. The City has indicated they are reviewing our proposal and will have comments back to 

us in the near future, which will be shared with the Board when we receive them. Finally, ever since 

we received a Certificate of Need (CON) for our project, we have been submitting quarterly reports 

to the DOH regarding the status of our project and will continue to do so until our new facility is 

open. 

 

B. Construction/ Schedule/ Budget 

     While Bouten and our other contractors have been ready to get our project moving, the weather 

has not cooperated. First it was too cold and now it is too wet. We are now waiting for the soil to dry 

out so they can get the compaction they need for our foundation. The current forecast does not call 

for precipitation for the next ten days which should allow the soil to dry out and for work on the 

project to continue. In the meantime, we are working with SVID to have them bury the overflow 

canal on our property. They are scheduled to begin work in January and finish in February. Bouten is 

also working with our excavation contractor (Big Ds) to begin excavating for our utilities (water, 

sewer, power) while we wait for the soil to dry out. Bouten representatives will be at the January 



Board Work Session to update the Board on construction (Attachment F) and to review the 

construction schedule (Attachment G). We recently learned that the USDA has approved our first 

draw for the project of $7,546,912.26, which includes payments previously made (e.g., architects) 

through the end of November 2022. NV5 maintains a comprehensive project budget (Attachment H) 

and is currently updating its contract and invoice tracking system to align with the approved final 

budget. NV5 will update the Board regarding our current budget status at the January Board Work 

Session. 

 

     C. ERCP 

         We are bringing a Capital Budget request to the Board for approval in January for two 

duodenoscopes to begin doing Endoscopic Retrograde Cholangiopancreatography (ERCP) 

(Attachment TTT).  The scopes were budgeted for $140,000 and will cost less than that, but we do 

not have the shipping cost (currently $123,312 + shipping. With the addition of Dr. McDonnell to our 

Medical Staff, we will have the expertise to offer this procedure at PMH. ERCP is a highly sought-after 

GI procedure that is not performed in many hospitals.  Patients in our community needing an 

emergent ERCP are sent to other facilities, sometimes as far away as Portland or Boise.  Not only will 

we be able to avoid transfers out of our Emergency Department, but we anticipate being able to 

accept transfers from other Central Washington hospitals. 

 

 

 

Patient Loyalty 

1. Patient Satisfaction 

          Arguably the most challenging, and important Pillar Goal we have is Patient Loyalty. Patient 

Loyalty is measured through patient satisfaction but is supplemented with increased patient 

volumes. I am pleased to report that we exceeded our goals on all metrics. Our aggregate patient 

satisfaction score was 93.31% compared to 92.9% last year (Attachment J). In addition, we improved 

in almost every area we survey (Emergency Department, OB, Outpatient Services, and our Clinics.) 

Considering all the challenges we faced in 2022 this is outstanding work by our PMH Team. Every 

employee, provider, and volunteer at PMH helped contribute to this outstanding performance. Well 

done! On top of the survey results, we also saw volumes grow in almost every department. We have 

now set the satisfaction bar very high for next year, but I am confident that our Team is up for the 

challenge! 

          

 

 



Employee Development 

1. Employee Recognition 

     Historically, every January we host a PMH Employee Recognition luncheon to honor our staff for 

the dedication to our patients and PMH. We recognize staff every five years and award them with 

lunch, a service pen, and $50 for every year of service they have provided to PMH. This luncheon was 

held on January 18th at Desert Wind Winery where we recognized 49 individuals (Attachment K). In 

total, these individuals have provided 510 years of service to PMH. The longest tenured employee in 

this group is Mary Castilleja, Patient Financial Services Representative, who has worked at PMH for 

35 years. Congratulations! Please join me in thanking these employees for their commitment to those 

we serve and Prosser Memorial Health! 

 

 

 

2. 2022 Employee Engagement Results 

     A key area of focus at PMH has been our Employee Development Pillar which focuses on staff 

satisfaction and engagement. A key to achieving high patient satisfaction scores is to have engaged 

staff and Medical Staff providers. The best way to objectively measure engagement/satisfaction is to 

conduct a survey of our staff, which we do annually. You can also look at turnover rates as a proxy for 

satisfaction. Our turnover rate decreased to 8.4% in 2022, which is well below the industry average of 

20+% (which is increasing every day). 

     Our engagement survey was once again conducted by People Element during the months of 

October/November. Our participation level was 84.2%, which was better than our participation level 

last year at 82.0%. The full results of the survey, including comments (Attachment L) will be shared 

with everyone at PMH on January 24th. Quinton Barrett from People Element will share the results 

with our staff at several sessions scheduled for employees. He will not only share the results but also 

seek ideas from our staff about ways to improve in the areas with the greatest concerns. One of the 

key metrics in the survey, and the metric we use for our Employee Development Pillar Goal is an 

employee’s satisfaction with PMH. Our performance improved to our highest satisfaction level ever at 

90.6% in 2022 compared to 89.2% in 2021. In addition, we exceeded our Employee Development Pillar 

Goal of 90%. This performance exceeds the performance of most hospitals in the nation, but we 

recognize that we must continue to improve in this area. To that end, we will be working with our 

Board to address areas such as wages and all departments will work to address department specific 

issues. The results of the 2022 Employee Engagement Survey will also be presented to the Board by 

Quinton Barrett at the January Board Work Session. 

 

 
    

 



3. Employee Engagement 
 

     Following-up on a holiday season filled with festivities at PMH, we are already planning for a 

bigger and better year of engagement activities in 2023. Our first step in this process was to re-

examine our Employee Engagement Team Charter and membership 

 (Attachment M). While we have added some new members to this team, we welcome more. If you 

are interested in participating on this team to help maintain and improve engagement, please 

contact Bryon Dirkes. The second step in the process was for the team to develop a calendar of 

Employee Engagement Events for 2023 (Attachment N). As you can see, we have a very robust year 

of activities planned. The Engagement Team is to be commended for developing this calendar and for 

working out all the details for each event throughout the year! In the coming weeks we will hold our 

first celebration with National Popcorn Day, and we will conduct our Annual Super Bowl Squares 

Contest (No Seahawks or Vikings to cheer on this year!). In addition, Valentine's Day and March 

Madness are just around the corner. Stay tuned for more details about each of these activities. I have 

also included our employee newsletter, The Pulse, which captures some of the fun activities at PMH 

in December (Attachment O). 

 
 
 

 4. International Association of Fire Fighters (IAFF) Negotiations 
 

         Prosser Memorial Health remains in negotiations with I.A.F.F., Local I-24. The Union 

represents twenty-one (21) full-time & part-time EMT’s and Paramedics. After six (6) negotiating 

sessions the Union and Prosser Memorial leadership held mediation on January 5th to resolve three 

(3) outstanding items. Following mediation, all but one (1) contract article have tentative 

agreements, with the one remaining open item being, Hours of work/staffing levels. The next 

bargaining session is scheduled on February 1st. Once an agreement is secured, the contract 

proposal will be brought to the Board of Commissioners for approval. 

 
 

 
 
 
Medical Staff Development 
 
1. Medical Staff Engagement Results 

 
    The Medical Staff Engagement Survey was also conducted in October/November. The 

participation level in 2022 was 54.2% compared to 74% in 2021, a significant decrease which we 

must address in 2023 if we want to have statistically valid results. The results of the survey, including 

comments (Attachment P) will be distributed to the Medical Staff on January 24th. Quinton Barrett 

from People Element will review the results and lead a discussion about opportunities for 

improvement. The key metric (Pillar Goal) in the survey used to measure Medical Staff Satisfaction 



with PMH showed a decline from 85.2% in 2021 to 83.2% in 2022 we are disappointed with the 

decline and will work even harder in 2023. We already have some ideas about how we can improve 

this metric, including naming Dr. Jacobo Rivero as our ACMO in charge of Medical Staff Engagement. 

I would also like to thank our CMO's (Drs. Sollers, Hashmi, and Wenger) for helping to make Medical 

Staff Engagement a priority at PMH. Quinton Barrett will also review the results of the Medical Staff 

Engagement Survey with the Board at the January Board Work Session. 

 

2. Medical Staff Recruitment  
 

     We have hit the ground running with our Medical Staff Recruitment and our 2023 Recruitment 
Plan. I am pleased to announce that the following physicians will be joining us in 2023: Dr. Michael 
McDonnell-Gastroenterologist (January); Dr. Jacobo Rivero-Occupational Medicine (February); Dr. 
Jessika Dingwall-Radiology (March); Dr. Geoffrey Higgs-Orthopedic Surgery/Sports Medicine (May); 
and Dr. Joshua Macke-Emergency Medicine (July). Please join me in welcoming these physicians to 
PMH! While it's great that we can continue to recruit outstanding additions to our Medical Staff I am 
disappointed to report that two of our valuable providers, Dr. Carolyn O'Connor-Family 
Medicine/Prosser and Pam Morris, ARNP-Occupational Health/Prosser are leaving (Attachment Q). 
Please join me in thanking both providers for their contributions to PMH and wish them the best in 
their future endeavors! 

 
     In addition to our successes, we continue to interview candidates in the specialties identified in 
our Recruitment Plan for 2023 including: family practice, emergency medicine, pediatrics, and 
internal medicine. With the success we have already experienced in 2023, I am excited about our 
recruitment possibilities for the remainder of the year. 

 
       

 
3. Grandview Clinic Rural Health Clinic (RHC) Survey 

 
    On December 12th, 2022, a Medicare re-accreditation survey was conducted at the Grandview 

Clinic (Attachment R). This is a routine survey conducted every three years to maintain RHC 

accreditation. The survey is conducted by The Compliance Team (TCT), on accreditation compliance 

organization similar to the Joint Commission. The surveyor found deficiencies which were addressed 

by the Grandview Clinic Staff in a Plan of Correction. The Plan of Correction was approved and the 

Grandview Clinic RHC accreditation was extended until December 30th, 2025. Congratulations to 

everyone that assisted with preparing for the survey and the survey itself! 

 

 
4. Emergency Department Medical Director 

      

     Shortly after the holidays, we learned that Dr. Robert Wenger, Emergency Department Physician 

and Emergency Department Medical Director is resigning in early spring of 2023 (Attachment S). Dr. 



Wenger and his wife, Dr. Carr, are relocating back to their home state of Massachusetts to be closer 

to family. While Dr. Wenger is not leaving yet, over the next couple of months join me in thanking 

him for everything he has done for our patients and PMH and wish him well out east! We are 

currently interviewing several candidates for Dr. Wenger's position and hope to make a decision by 

the end of January. 

 
 
 

Financial Stewardship 
 
1. Financial Performance- December 
 

   We finished 2022 the same way it began, very strong (Attachment T). Our volumes exceeded 

budget and as a result our gross revenue was $6.6 million (33%) better than budget. While our 

deductions from revenue were over budget, they were generally in proportion to our increased 

revenue. As a result, our net revenue was $1.3 million (18%) over budget. The increased volumes 

(revenue) did result in our operating expenses being 8% over budget, but appropriate with the 

increased revenue. As a result, we ended the month with an operating income of $1.3 million 

compared to our budget of $526,448 and after adding in our non-operating income, we experienced 

a net income of $1,493,696 or 167% better than budget. 

     As a result of another strong financial month, our year-to-date or year-end financial position 

continued to improve. Our gross revenue was $255 million (exceeding a quarter of a billion…. that 

just sounds good!), which was 17% over budget and 29% over last year. This increase was the result 

of increased volumes throughout the organization as demonstrated by adjusted patient days (an 

overall volume metric) which were 26,289 in 2022, or 15% over budget and 29% over 2021. Our 

deductions from revenue were again in line with our revenue growth and we also received $1.8 

million in COVID Relief Funds compared to the $10.2 million we received in 2021. The result was a 

net revenue of $96.0 million or 8% over our budget. Our expenses were only 1% over budget despite 

our increased volumes. This resulted in an operating income of $12.2 million compared to our budget 

of $5.7 million. After accounting for our non-operating income (which was a loss due to investment 

losses), our total net income was $12 million. This was the best financial year in the history of the 

hospital if we exclude COVID-19 Relief Funds. This resulted in a total margin of 12.5% which far 

exceeds our Pillar Goal of 6.0%. As a result of these positive financial results, we experienced a 

positive cash flow in 2022 of $4.9 million despite making a significant investment in our replacement 

facility. We also saw our cash balances remain strong and grow. Finally, it is important to note that 

the largest payor class for services at PMH in 2022 was commercial insurance. This along with our 

strong financial performance throughout 2022 positions us well for the future. 

 
 

2.  PMH Clinic Financial Report 
 
          Financial reports for each of the PMH Clinics are attached in the Board Packet for your review, 

including a consolidated report of all the clinics (Attachment TT). Most of the clinics exceeded their 



budgeted and prior year volumes and in total, the PMH Clinics provided 61,668 total visits in 2022 
compared to 56,481 visits in 2021. As a result of these strong volumes, the clinics in total exceeded 
their budgeted contribution margin of ($3,519,237) as they combined for a positive contribution 
margin of $1,262,099 which was 136% better than budget and 148% better than last year. 
Outstanding! It is also important to note that these clinics, and their providers, accounted for 
$106,801,117 or 41.8% of all PMH gross revenue in 2022 through all their patient visits, surgeries, lab 
work, radiology procedures, rehab, etc. Without the clinics we would not experience the financial 
success we have today. 
     

 
 

 
3. Audits 
          

          We recently met virtually with representatives from the Washington State Auditor’s office to open 

their 2022 audit. They reviewed the areas they will be auditing (Attachment U) and outlined their 

audit process, which will once again be virtual. We will be required to send them all the information 

they need, which is fine, but can be challenging when we are also working on other major projects 

such as financing and constructing a new facility. We anticipate the audit will take several months to 

complete and at the same time, we will be working with DZA on our 2022 Financial Audit. Our 

financial staff deserve a lot of credit for providing outstanding financial services to all of us 

throughout the year in addition to special projects such as these audits. Well done! 

 

 

4. PMH Foundation Update 
 

     Save the Date for Bottles, Brews, Barbecues June 9 & 10. A steering committee made up of 
Foundation Board members, PMH staff, and community members held their first planning meeting 
last week. The Wine Country Classic will be Friday, September 8 at Canyon Lakes Golf Course once 
again. The shotgun start time will be announced as we get closer to the event date. 
The capital campaign for the new hospital has raised $1.5 million of our $3 million goal. I have asked 
each Foundation Board member to schedule one meeting with a community member or business to 
discuss the project and campaign with by the end of February. The Prosser Record Bulletin published 
a Letter to the Editor from Craig Marks in response to some questions that were raised about our 
project after the groundbreaking event in November (Attachment V). The Foundation Board is asking 
the Hospital to approve the proposed appointment of Belem Grey, wife of John Grey owner of the 
Prosser House, to the PMH Foundation Board. This will be acted on in January. 

 

 

 

 



QUALITY 
 
1. Department of Health (DOH) Survey 
 

     On Tuesday, January 10, 2023, we had the pleasure of hosting the Department of Health (DOH) for 

our State survey which occurs approximately every 18 months. (Our last survey was June 15-18, 

2021.)  There were two nurse surveyors, an environment of care surveyor, and a Fire Marshall.  The 

two nurse surveyors reviewed every patient care unit in the hospital as well as the Specialty 

Clinic.  The environment of care surveyor reviewed all patient care units, laundry, HR 

employee/provider files, environment of care files, and even visited the Physical Therapy 

Clinic.  These three surveyors were here from January 10th through January 12th.  The Fire Marshall 

was here January 12th.  The exit conference was held in the Vineyard on Thursday, January 12th at 

3:15pm.  Overall, the survey results that they were able to share went very well.  As expected, they 

always find something, but nothing that hasn’t either already been fixed or is an easy fix, such as 

exposed drywall, policies that need updating, missing reassessments for pain and restraints, expired 

items from ultrasound gel to needles/syringes, infection control issues such as donning and doffing 

PPE, etc.  The surveyors take all their notes back to their offices for a complete and thorough 

review.  We can expect to receive a final Statement of Deficiencies (SOD) within 10 business days (not 

including weekends or holidays).  Once received, we have 10 calendar days to return our Plan of 

Corrections to them.  I would like to thank all those who participated in the survey and to everyone 

at PMH for keeping us survey ready every day!!! 

 

2. 2023 Board Work Plan 
      

       Included in your Board Packet is a draft 2023 Board Work Plan (Attachment W). This document is 
a plan of routine, regulatory, and special projects that the Board will need to address throughout the 
year based on our 2023 Strategic Plan. This Plan is not carved in stone and could change if our 
priorities change. The Plan is a good reminder of what we would like to accomplish each month this 
year and will be included in every Board Packet. If the Board would like to make any additions or 
deletions to the 2023 Board Work Plan, please let me know. 

 
 
3. 2023 PMH Strategic Plan and Patient Care Scorecards 
 
           With the new year upon us it is time to draft new 2023 Scorecards based on our Pillar Goals, 2023 

Strategic Plan, and regulatory (e.g., CMS) requirements. These draft scorecards will enable all of us to 
track several measures related to our Strategic Plan and Quality Goals monthly (Attachment X) 
(Attachment Y). Each scorecard goal for 2023 is developed based on our 2022 actual performance, 
with an expectation of improvement on each metric. We are recommending that we change how the 
quality metric is calculated as described in (Attachment Z). We shared these documents with the 
Joint Conference Committee and asked them for suggestions and/or other measures. We would also 
like the Board to review these documents and let us know if you would like to see changes. Like the 
Board Work Plan, these documents will be in all future Board Packets and reviewed with the Board 
on a quarterly basis. In addition, these documents will be distributed throughout the hospital and 



clinics and will enable everyone to determine with a quick glance, how Prosser Memorial Health is 
performing. 

 
 
 
 

4. 2023 Quality Assurance and Risk Management Program Plans 
 
          The PMH 2022 Quality Assurance Program (Attachment AA) and Risk Management Program 

(Attachment BB) Plans will be presented to the Board for approval at the January Board Meeting. 
These Program Plans outline how, in 2023, PMH will maintain and enhance our quality performance 
and reduce our risk by developing and maintaining a culture of continuous improvement and safety. 
There have been no substantive changes to the Program Plans from last year.    

 
 

 

5. Board Self-Evaluation 

    In December, the Board was asked to complete a Board Self-Evaluation, which is an activity the 

Board completes every year. All Commissioners completed the survey, and the results are in the 

Board Packet (Attachment CC). The results show both the results from this year and prior years. The 

results will be discussed with the Board in the Executive Session of the January Board Meeting. Based 

on the survey results and discussion, a Board Action Plan will be developed and presented to the 

Board for approval in February. The 2022 Board Action Plan, complete with actions taken, is included 

in your packet for your review (Attachment DD). 

 

6. Regulatory Requirements 
      

          As required by PMH Board Policy and Washington State Law, Board of Commissioners 
are required to complete two forms each year. First the PMH Conflict of Interest form 
 (Attachment EE) and second, the Washington State F-1 Personal Financial Affairs Statement 
(Attachment FF). Please complete these forms and return them to Rosemary at the January meeting 
and/or return the F-1 directly to the State. Thank you! 
 

 

 

7. Board Officers & Committee 

          Per the Prosser Memorial Health Bylaws, the Board of Commissioners are required to annually 

elect officers for the coming year (Attachment GG) and review their committee structure and 

membership. The Board is required to hold an election each January and elect a President, Vice 

President, and Secretary. The 2022 PMH Board Officers were President-Steve Kenny, Ph.D.; Vice 



President-Keith Sattler; and Secretary-Glenn Bestebreur. The term of these offices is one year and 

there are no term limits thus there is no requirement for changes to be made to the current officers. 

The Board is also tasked with periodically evaluating their committee structure and the membership 

on the committees. The current Board Officers, committees, and membership are included for your 

review (Attachment HH). These items will be on the January Board Meeting Agenda for the Board to 

consider. 

 

8. January Board Work and Regular Session 

        The January Board Work Session will be used for a presentation of our Employee and Medical 

Staff Engagement Survey results by Quinton Barrett from People Element. We will also review a 

replacement facility update regarding the design, construction, schedule, and budget from bcDG, 

NV5, and Bouten Construction. The Board will also go into Executive Session to discuss employee 

evaluations. The January Board Meeting will be used to take formal action on the 2023 Quality 

Assurance and Risk Management Program Plans, elect Board Officers for 2023 and Board committee 

structure, and membership for 2023. The Board will also go into Executive Session to discuss the 

Board Self-Evaluation results. 

 

9. Reminder-February Board Meeting 
 

          I would like to remind the Board that because five of us will be attending the AHA Rural 
Healthcare Leadership Conference in San Antonio on Tuesday February 21st, 2023, there will not be a 
Board Work Session in February. There will, however, be a regular Board Meeting as scheduled on 
Thursday February 23, 2023.  
 

   

 

           

          

 

If you have any questions regarding this report, or other hospital activities, please contact me at 

(269) 214-8185 (cell), (509) 786-6695 (office), or stop by and see me at the hospital.                                                                              



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter

Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment A



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment B

































Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment C









Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment D













Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment E















Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment F



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment G





Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment H











Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment I





Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment J



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment K



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment L





























































Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment M



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment N



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment O









































Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment P





























Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment Q



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment R



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment S



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment T



























Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment TT



















Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment TTT













Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment U









Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment V







Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment W















Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment X



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment Y



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment Z



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment AA























Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment BB











Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment CC







Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment DD







Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment EE



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment FF









Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment GG



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment HH




	Cover Page
	1.24.23 Work Session Agenda
	1.26.23 Board Meeting Agenda
	_2022 PATIENT CARE SCORECARD (2)
	_2022 Strategic Plan Scorecard (2)
	12.13.2022 Board Work Session Minutes
	12.15.22 Board Minutes
	1.18.23 JCC Minutes
	01-23-23 FINANCE COMMITTEE AGENDA
	12.12.22 Finance Committee Minutes updated
	January 2023 Ceo Memo
	Attachment A
	Attachment B
	Attachment C
	Attachment D
	Attachment E
	Attachment F
	Attachment G
	Attachment H
	Attachment I
	Attachment J
	Attachment K
	Attachment L
	Attachment M
	Attachment N
	Attachment O
	Attachment P
	Attachment Q
	Attachment R
	Attachment S
	Attachment T
	Attachment TT
	Attachment TTT
	Attachment U
	Attachment V
	Attachment W
	Attachment X
	Attachment Y
	Attachment Z
	Attachment AA
	Attachment BB
	Attachment CC
	Attachment DD
	Attachment EE
	Attachment FF
	Attachment GG
	Attachment HH



